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September 23, 2016 
ADDENDUM #1 

TO REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL FOR COPIER/TECHNOLOGY FLEET CONTRACT 
 

 
RICOH USA, INC. 

 

1. What is the current vender’s obligation to return any existing equipment as it is being asked that 

the District be clear of all return fees and financial obligations based on a 60 month term.? 

 

a. Current vendor will return their own equipment. 

 

2. Please clarify Section III, Subsection "c":  "Vender will remove and return current The District 

equipment with no cost to the district?"  Are you referring to the existing vender or are you asking 

whoever is awarded be responsible for returning the existing equipment to your existing vender? 

 

a. Current vendor will remove their own equipment. 

 

3. Will you please provide a list of existing equipment to be returned and where it needs to be 

returned to? 

 

a. Current vendor will remove their own equipment. 

 

4. Will you please provide the average monthly Black and White Volume per Device or at a 

minimum, please provide a total monthly average?  

 

a. Per device is difficult to determine as they are all different, our monthly volume changes 

based on the month with summers being the slowest.  Overall for the 2015-2016 the copier 

fleet printed approximately 85 million impressions. 

 

5. What you please provide the average monthly Color Volume per Device or at a minimum, please 

provide a total monthly average? 

 

a. The District only has one color copier and the average monthly usage for the 2015-2016 

school year was approximately 2,300 impressions. 

 

6. Are you replacing machines for like machines or are you consolidating printing capabilities by 
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removing smaller, devices and going with all Multi-function Printers?  

 

a. We are not replacing like for like in most cases.  We are working to change flow of 

printing within the district and ensuring the appropriate machines are in the appropriate 

locations. 

 

7. What is the monthly term of your existing agreement?  Type of Contract (FMV Lease, Rental or 

$1.00 out)?  

 

a. Lease 

 

8. What are the requested dates of install and implementation? Is the expectation to be over Winter 

Break and if so, please provide the dates Winter Break Covers or over the full month of 

December?  

 

a. Winter break begins December 23rd, 2016 and students return on January 9th, 2017.  We 

will implement the new copiers and software during that time.  Considering the short time 

frame, any work that does not impact the day to day operations may be completed prior to 

the start of break with the physical install over break. 

 

9. Why is the requirement that ALL devices have an "external" finisher?  Do all machines have to 

have a finisher and would an internal staple finisher suffice on some units? 

 

a. External finishers will be required for all devices 55ppm and above, internal finishers will 

be acceptable on units less than 55ppm. 

 

10. How many users total in the district?  

 

a. Approximately 31,000, however our elementary and early childhood students do not have 

their own login.  We have approximately 11,500 elementary and early childhood students.  

Leaving us with approximately 19,500 unique logins. 

 

11. There appears to be 177 copiers.  Over how many physical locations is this and how many in each 

location?  

 

a. 1 each at our 2 off site location (Joliet Junior College and Adventist Bolingbrook Hospital) 

b. 17 at each of our 4 high schools 

c. 4 at each of our 7 middle schools 

d. 4 at 16 of our 17 elementary schools, with only 3 at the 17th elementary (Crystal Lawns) 

e. 1 at our operations facility 

f. 1 at our technology facility 

g. 3 at our alternative education location 

h. 2 at our early learning center 

i. 5 at our administration center 

 

12. What are the client workstation platform(s)?  How many?  

 

a. Windows 8/8.1 approximately 135 devices 

b. Windows 7 approximately 9,300 devices 

c. Windows 10 approximately 10 devices 



 

13. What are server platform(s)?  How many?  

 

a. 33 Windows print servers 

 

14. Authentication method (i.e., Active Directory, LDAP, etc.)  

 

a. Active Directory 

 

15. Any mobile (phone and/or tablets) devices printing?  

 

a. Not at this time 

 

16. Any external database in use (i.e. MSSQL, MySQL, Oracle, etc.)  

 

a. MSSQL and MySQL 

 

17. How many different print rules are needed?  

 

a. Due to the fact that this will be the first time we are implementing printing rules, we are 

unsure of the total number we will need.  We would anticipate at least half a dozen rules. 

 

18. Do they want to track the wide-format?  Does it also require a card reader? 

 

a. Ideally we would like to track the wide-format, and use a card reader. 

 

 

 

ISBS Inc.  

 

1. Who is the current vendor? 

 

a. Gordon Flesch 

 

2. Can you provide a full model list of the current machines? 

 

a. 3 Canon iR 1023iF 

b. 1 Canon iR 1025iF 

c. 1 Canon iR 2018i 

d. 38 Canon iR 2022i 

e. 16 Canon iR 2030i 

f. 1 Canon iR 3030 

g. 1 Canon iR 3045 

h. 2 Canon iR 3235i 

i. 23 Canon iR 5050 

j. 4 Canon iR 5055 

k. 3 Canon iR 5065 

l. 1 Canon iR 5070 

m. 5 Canon iR 5075 

n. 1 Canon iR 5570 



o. 3 Canon iR 7086 

p. 63 Canon iR ADV 6055 

q. 23 Canon iR ADV 8085 

r. 4 Canon iR ADV 8205 

s. 1 Canon iR C3080i 

t. 1 Canon iPF710 

 

 

COTG’s  

1. Hardware/Machine Requirements General Questions 

a. For Color Wide Format, what is the maximum width you need to print/copy?  Also do 

you need this device to be able to scan?  Do you need this device to utilize post script? 

 

i. 36” width 

ii. No scanning necessary 

iii. Yes post script drives will be needed. 

 

b. For the 55PPM BW MFD’s—are either of the (2) units that require Dual Fax also (2) of 

the (5) units that require Hole Punch? 

 

i. Yes, both of the units that require dual fax will require 3 hole punch as well 

 

c. Does your current contract have any volume/prints built into the contract or is it just a pay 

as you go contract? 

 

i. The current contract separates equipment lease from click counts so we only pay 

for what we use. 

 

d. What is your current monthly volume for all devices for black and white and color 

printing and copying? 

 

i. Monthly volume depends greatly on the month, with summer time being the 

slowest.  In the 2015-2016 school year the district printed approximately 85 million 

clicks on the copiers. 

 

2. Device Management Requirement Software Questions 

a. How many total users will need to authenticate to the devices (total number of 

employees)? 

 

i. We have approximately 3,000 employees 

 

b. How many locations?   

 

i. 34 different buildings (35 locations, our Administration center and Early Learning 

center are in the same building just different floors) 

 



c. Is the district utilizing print servers?  

 

i. Yes 

i. If so, what is the Operating System, Windows, Mac, Linux, UNIX? 

1. Windows 

ii. Is there a print server at each location? 

1. Yes (with the exception being our two offsite locations) 

d. How many workstations? (rules based printing may require a workstation client to be 

deployed) 

 

i. Approximately 9,450 devices 

ii. Are the majority of workstations Windows or Mac? How many macs and do they 

authenticate via active directory and print through a Windows print server or direct 

to devices? 

1. We are a Windows environment with only a couple of iPads for specific 

use. 

e. Will the district require print tracking for Desktop Printers as well (USB Connected 

Printers)?  If so, how many? 

 

i. Yes, we have approximately 900 desktop printers. 

 

f. Does the district want or need the ability to track printing from Mobile Devices as 

well?  If so, what kind of mobile devices are being utilized?  (Chromebooks or iPads) 

 

i. No current mobile devices 

 

g. What kind of cards will be utilized for Card Authentication at the device?  Ex. HID, 

Proximity, MagStrip, and Barcode? 

 

i. Proximity 

 

h. Do you want to track student printing at any of the locations? 

  

i. Yes 

 

Martin Whalen Office Solutions 

1. Would you please elaborate on the Without Cause section under Termination? 



 

a. Please see Page 8, #8, section b of the RFP. 

 

2. Can you provide a list of the current assets, by model, with current meters and monthly or 

annual volume history? 

 

a. 3 Canon iR 1023iF 

b. 1 Canon iR 1025iF 

c. 1 Canon iR 2018i 

d. 38 Canon iR 2022i 

e. 16 Canon iR 2030i 

f. 1 Canon iR 3030 

g. 1 Canon iR 3045 

h. 2 Canon iR 3235i 

i. 23 Canon iR 5050 

j. 4 Canon iR 5055 

k. 3 Canon iR 5065 

l. 1 Canon iR 5070 

m. 5 Canon iR 5075 

n. 1 Canon iR 5570 

o. 3 Canon iR 7086 

p. 63 Canon iR ADV 6055 

q. 23 Canon iR ADV 8085 

r. 4 Canon iR ADV 8205 

s. 1 Canon iR C3080i 

t. 1 Canon iPF710 

u. In the 2015-2016 school year the district printed approximately 85 million 

impressions on the copiers 

 

3. Can you provide a return location for the devices? 

 

a. Current vendor will pick up devices 

 

4. In Section IV, can you clarify the phrase “with the District being clear of all return fees and 

financial obligations?” 

 

a. Upon the termination of the contract the district shall be free of all return fees and 

financial obligations. 

 

5. Can you provide specifications for the Wide Format? 

 

a. 36” width, color, post script drivers required 

 

6. How are the supplies and maintenance to be handled for the Wide Format? 

 

a. Similar to that of the clicks on the copiers. 

 

7. Regarding Section 2f, Device Management Requirements, can you please provide more 

detail on your expectations for restrictions and timed printing?  

 



a. Do you currently use Print Management software solution?  

 

i. No 

 

ii. If so, what product are you currently utilizing? 

 

 

1. N/A 

 

b. Do you have the specification of the types of cards your staff/faculty will use on the 

MFP’s 

 

i. Proximity 

 

c. Has the district instituted a Student One-to-One program? 

 

i. No 

 

ii. If so, what types of devices have been issued to the students? 

 

1. N/A 

 

d. Do you allow the students to print? 

 

i. Yes 

 

ii. Do the students authenticate when they use the computers? 

 

1. Yes 

 

iii. If so, what is the number (approximate number is sufficient) of students that 

print? 

 

1. Approximately 16,500 

 

iv. If so, do you wish Students to release print jobs at the copiers? 

 

1. Only in a couple of specific locations 

 

v. Do the Students use cards?  

 

1. Students use cards with barcodes  

 

vi. Are all students issued a card? 

 

1. Yes 

 

vii. Do the Students use the same types of cards as staff and faculty? 

 

1. No, staff uses Proximity cards and students cards have barcodes 



 

viii. If not, what types of cards do the Students carry? 

 

1. Student ID cards have a unique barcode 

 

e. Do you wish to track print to all of the single function printers? 

 

i. Yes 

 

ii. If so, do you have an estimate of how many single function printers are 

utilized in the district? 

 

1. Approximately 900 

 

iii. Do user print through a print server or directly from their workstations to 

the printers? 

 

1. Print Server 

 

f. Can you give a brief summary of your network? 

i. OS of the servers? 

 

1. Windows 

 

ii. How many print servers? 

 

1. 33 print servers 

 

iii. OS of workstations 

1. How many Windows (approximate number is sufficient) 

 

a. Approximately 9,450 

 

2. How many MAC’s (approximate number is sufficient) 

 

a. 0 

 

iv. How many user are there in AD/LDAP? 

1. Faculty/Staff (approximate number is sufficient) 

 

a. Approximately 3,000 

 

2. Students  (approximate number is sufficient) 

 

a. Approximately 16,500 


